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DESCRIBE THE PRESENT AND ORIGINAL (if known) PHYSICAL APPEARANCE

In 1958 when the old, two-story Eagle Tavern became state property to
be restored as a museum, it was a much larger structure than it is today.
Then there were I8 ¥ooms most of which dated from the 1840's; today it con-
sists of two rooms downstairs with two above reached by a narrow, treacher-
ous staircase. This two-story, four-room, frame structure was the earliest
part of the building. It was found packaged within the larger structure
by Thomas G. Little, the architect in charge of restoration. (Local peaple
had always believed that somewhere within the ramshakled building was hidden
the county's oldest structure,a two-room, log blockhouse. This proved to
be only partly true.) The architect recommended restoring only this early
section. Restoration funds were limited, the condition of the 1840-ish
additions was so poor, and the earliest section had all earmarks of being
the .oldest surviving frame building in the Georgia upcountry. Physical
evidence, such as beaded weatherboards, and stylistic characteristics

give the building an earlier date than the historical documents
associated with the building. In short it is stylistically so conservative
that it might have been built in the Virginia or Carolina pledmont in the
1760's but documentary evidence seems to point to a date no earlier than
about 1820. This sort of structure is described in Georgia as being in the
"plantation plain style." It is early Georgian in feeling and made of wood
throughout. Features are: a tall brick chimney rising on the north gable
end of a pitched roof; a 51mple box cornice front and rear; two front doors
(the right one leading into a tavern room and theleft into a store), on the
south gable end a service door for wagon deliveries with,below the thresh-
0ld,a wooden bumper; nine over six windows on the second floor and nine
over nine on the first; the whole rests on a full basement with a fireplace.
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| the Eagle must be largely conjectural. We do know that during this time

STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANCE

Historical Commission as an example of an early frontler tavern, stagestop
and store. Like similar establishments throughout the young nation, it was
a communlty center for political, social and economic activities. In 1956,
after Lanier Richardson Billups, a descendent of one of the tavern's owners |
deeded. the structure to the state, the Commission began a research program
to determine the best way to preserve the Eagle and to present it to the
public. At that time, the Eagle was made up of 16 rooms and much history,
some of which proved to be legendary. The legends were useful too because
in investigating them, important facts came to light. One legend maintained
that the ramshkled, l6-room building was originaglly a 2-room log blockhouse
built as a defense against Indian attacks. Rather than an early fort, archi
tectural research revealed a well-preserved, Q:rgggftavern-store, c. 1820,
framed within decaying 1840-ish additions. Further architectural and archas
logical investigation determined that the Eagle was a busy establishment by
1825. The poor condition and size of the total building and the quality
and good condition of the earliest section were the reasons for paring the
16 rooms down to four and presenting the Eagle as a representative tavern
and store of the 1820's.

With the exception of the chain of ownership of land from 1791 until
Richard Richardson acquired the property in October 1836, exact accounts of

Watkinsville was a crossroads between the capital in Milledgeville and the
newly chosen site of the University of Georgia in Athens. (Another legend
surrounding the history of the Eagle was that it was here that meetings werd
held to decide the location of the University.) Increased traffic in Wat-
kinsville surely brought increased trade to the Eagle for in 1830 an outdooix
kitchen was built and in the 1840's additions to the hotel were begun. The
years prior to the Civil War were the busiest for the tavern but the years

afterward saw a decrease in activity. The transfer of the capital to Atlant
the expansion of the railroads, the decline of plantation economy and the de
of Richardson in 1871 contributed to the lessening of tavern business in the
eastern part of the state. Many people attempted to maintain the tavern buf
by the 20th century it had come to represent the romantic past rather than
to function as a vital center of activity.

The Georgia Historical Commission, through the restoration and furnishi
of the earliest section of the building, and by means of exhibits continues
to perpetuate Eagle Tavern as a representative historical setting for a
way of life which has passed.

Eagle Tavern in Watkinsville, Georgia, has been restored by the Georgia
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